
  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street  

Spartanburg, SC 
Monday, July 14, 2014 

5:30 p.m. 
 

I. Moment of Silence  
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
III.       Approval of the Minutes of the June 23, 2014 City Council Meeting 
 
IV.  Approval of Agenda of the July 14, 2014 City Council Meeting 
 
V.         Public Comment 
             *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 

 

VI.         Special Presentation from 2014 SAIYL Program 
               Presenter: Kathy Hill, Community Services Coordinator 
 
VII.       Ordinance – Public Hearing 
 
              A. To Amend the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina Zoning Ordinance and 
 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element, by Amending Section 206, Changes to 
 District Boundaries, Specifically Parcel #7-21-03-077.01 – Located on 241 Cedar 
 Springs Road, which is Currently Zoned R-6 with a Land Use Designation of 
 General Residential District) to Zone GID with a Land Use Designation of 
 General Institutional District, and Providing for Severability and an Effective 
 Date (First Reading) 
  Presenter:  Josh Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
 
VIII.     Resolutions 
 
              A.   To Approve the City to Enter into a Ground Lease Agreement with Saint 
 Matthew’s Episcopal Church for the Purpose of a Neighborhood Park in the 
 West Side of Spartanburg 
 Presenter:  Kim Moultrie, Parks and Recreation Superintendent 
 
               
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

CITY OF SPARTANBURG 
                                          SOUTH CAROLINA 

As required by the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Spartanburg will provide interpretive services for the City Council 
Meetings. Requests must be made to the Communications & Marketing Office (596-2020) 24 hours in advance of the meeting. This is a 
Public Meeting and notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. 

 

 
 
 



  

* City Code Sec. 2-57. Citizen Appearance. Any citizen of the City of  Spartanburg may speak at a regular meeting on any matter 
pertaining to City Services and operations germane to items within the purview and authority of City Council, except personnel 
matters, by signing a Citizen’s Appearance form prior to the meeting stating the subject and purpose for speaking. No item 
considered by Council within the past twelve (12) months may be added as an agenda item other than by decision of City Council. 
The forms may be obtained from the Clerk and maintained by the same. Each person who gives notice may speak at the designated 
time and will be limited to a two (2) minute presentation. 

 
 
      
 
 
 
 IX.     Other Business 
 
              A. Traffic Signal Installation at Intersection of Dupre Drive and Fernwood Drive  
                       Presenter:  Tim Carter, Engineering Administrator 
 
               B. Award of Bid for 2014 Annual Street Resurfacing 
                         Presenters:  Tim Carter, Engineering Administrator 
  
              C.     Approval of Applicants for Boards and Commissions – Bicycle and Pedestrian 
 Committee, HARB, Housing Authority, Public Safety, SADAC, and Zoning 
 Board of Adjustment and Appeals 
                       Presenter: Connie McIntyre, City Clerk 
           
   X.       City Council Updates 
 
   XI.      Executive Session to Discuss a Potential Economic Development Project 
 
  XII.      Adjournment 
 

City Council Agenda 
Page Two – July 14, 2014 



  
 

          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

III.  



1 
 

 
  

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street  

Spartanburg, SC 
Monday, June 23, 2014 

5:30 p.m. 
 

(These minutes are subject to approval at the  
July 14, 2014 City Council meeting.) 

 
City Council met this date with the following members present: Mayor Junie White, Mayor pro 
tem Jan Scalisi, Councilmembers Cate Ryba, Erica Brown, Robert Reeder, Jerome Rice, and 
Sterling Anderson were in attendance. City Manager Ed Memmott and City Attorney Cathy 
McCabe were also in attendance. Notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in 
advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. All City Council meetings are recorded 
for a complete transcript. 

 
I. Moment of Silence - observed  
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance - recited  

 
III.       Approval of the Minutes of the June 9, 2014 City Council Meeting –  
             Councilmember Reeder made a motion to approve the minutes as received.  
             Councilmember Rice seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
IV.  Approval of Agenda of the June 23, 2014 City Council Meeting –  
             Mayor White made a motion to approve the agenda as received. Councilmember Rice  
             seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
V.         Public Comment – David Garson, 23 Glen Eagle Place, Spartanburg, came forward to          
             introduce his new business, Friends and Co., located at 307 West Main St., to Council.  
             He shared that it would be a restaurant and retail space and should open in 6 weeks. 
             *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 
VI.         Special Recognition of City Retirees Judy Harper/School Crossing Guard and Willie  
              Norton/Fire Lieutenant 
               Presenter:  Mayor Junie White 
              Mayor White presented retirement plaques to Ms. Harper and Mr. Norton and thanked them  
              for their many years of dedicated service to the City. 
 
 
 



2 
 

VII.       Consent Agenda 
              A.     Ordinance to Confirm Eligibility of the Former Beaumont Mill for the State of 
 South Carolina Textiles Communities Redevelopment Tax Credits (Second
 Reading) 
 Presenter:  Chris Story, Assistant City Manager 
               B. Ordinance Accepting the Property Owned by Mary K. Randall and Being 
 Located at 207 Brian Court, and that Portion of Brian Court Abutting Said 
 Property, and is Further Identified on Spartanburg County Tax Map as 7-13-04-
 088.00 as a Part and Parcel of the City of Spartanburg and Declaring Said 
 Property Annexed to and a Part and Parcel of the City of Spartanburg (Second
 Reading) 
                       Presenter:  Joshua T. Henderson 
              C.     Ordinance to Authorize a Parks Improvements Assistance Agreement  Between        
                       the City of Spartanburg and the Mary Black Foundation (Second Reading) 
                       Presenter:  Chris Story, Assistant City Manager  
              Mayor pro tem Scalisi made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as received.  
              Councilmember Ryba seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
VIII.      Other Business 
              A. Award of Contract for Demolition of Sunshine Inn  
                       Presenter:  David Cook, Construction Project Manager 
 Mr. Cook presented the item to City Council as follows: 
            “Staff solicited bids for the demolition of Sunshine Inn. This work will consist of  
  asbestos and lead base paint abatement, demolition of the structure, preparing the site 
  and planting of grass. Bids were received from:   
  NEO Corporation                                     Canton NC                            107,500                                                                
  Wrecking Corp of America                             Duluth Ga.                            128,000                  
  Demteck LLC.                                                Spartanburg SC                     136,171                                                       
  Clear Site Industrial LLC                                Charlotte NC                         143,525                       
  TOA, LLC                                                       Norcross Ga                          147,000                      
  Complete Demolition                                      Carrollton  Ga                       162,000                                                  
  Eastern Environmental Inc.                             Hampstead  NC                     189,962                                                                                                                                                                                     
  D H Griffin Wrecking Co. Inc.                       Duncan SC                            199,000                      
  Carolina Wrecking Inc.                                   Columbia SC                         225,700                        
  Abatech Services, Inc.                                    Snellville Ga                          283,600                                       

                
  One bid (Abatech) was submitted by MWBE.  After reviewing contractor   
  qualifications, staff is recommending award to Neo Corporation.  
 
  Staff is requesting City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into contract with 
  Neo Corporation for the demolition of the Sunshine Inn.   
   
  BUDGET AND FINANCIAL DATA: $107,500 in funds budgeted for Sunshine Inn 
  demolition.” 



3 
 

  Councilmember Brown made a motion to approve the award of contract as requested 
  to NEO Corporation in the amount of $107,500. Councilmember Rice seconded the 
  motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
  
               B. Briefing on the “Way to Wellville” National Competition 
                         Presenters:  Chris Story, Assistant City Manager 
                                               Kathy Dunleavy, CEO of the Mary Black Foundation 
                       Mr. Story introduced Ms. Dunleavy, who reviewed the information below with                 
                       Council: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
               
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
             Council received the report as information. 
 
C.         Approval of Applicants for Airport Advisory Committee, Alcohol & Drug Abuse   
             Commission, Civil Service Commission, Construction Board of Adjustments and     
             Appeals, and Spartanburg Memorial Auditorium Commission Applicants 
             Presenter: Connie McIntyre, City Clerk 
             Ms. McIntyre presented the following for Council consideration: 
             Airport Advisory Committee: 
             Mayor pro tem Scalisi made a motion to waive the rules and appoint Bradley Grant   
             Calhoun, Terence T. Connorton, and to reappoint Charles J. Hodge to the Airport Advisory  
             Committee. Councilmember Reeder seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
             Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission: 
             Mayor pro tem Scalisi made a motion to waive the rules and appoint Julia Tyesa McClary to   



5 
 

              the Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission. Councilmember Ryba seconded the motion,          
              which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
              Civil Service Commission 
              Mayor pro tem Scalisi made a motion to waive the rules and reappoint Helen D. Bennett  
              to the Civil Service Commission. Councilmember Anderson seconded the motion, which  
              carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
             Construction Board of Adjustment and Appeals 
             Mayor pro tem Scalisi made a motion to waive the rules and appoint Harry Clayton and  
             Stephen Parks, and to reappoint Kenya T. Trenthem to the Construction Board of Adjustment  
             and Appeals. Councilmember Brown seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to  
             0. 
             Spartanburg Memorial Auditorium Commission 
             Mayor pro tem Scalisi made a motion to waive the rules and reappoint Tammy E. Whaley,   
             and to appoint Alan Duesterhaus to the Auditorium Commission. Councilmember Anderson  
             seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0.  
             Design Review Board 
             Councilmember Reeder made a motion to waive the rules and reappoint Michael  
             Henthorn, Bill Joslin, Tipton Pitts, and Robert Richardson to the Design Review Board.  
             Councilmember Ryba seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
             Planning Commission 
             Councilmember Anderson made a motion to waive the rules and reappoint Wendell  
             Cantrell to the Planning Commission. Councilmember Brown seconded the motion, which  
             carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
 IX.       City Council Updates –  
              Councilmember Rice thanked everyone involved in the Focus on Fathers event held the  
              Saturday before Father’s Day. He shared there would be other events in the future.  
              He mentioned the Spartanburg High School Football Camp partnership with the City,  
              and an All Sports Camp for girls. 
              Councilmember Anderson shared he had eaten at Wild Aces on Sunday and had a great  
              experience. He thanked staff for working on mini parks for the west side. 
              Councilmember Brown mentioned the Fun in the Park event at Chapel St. Park on  
              June 25, and a games and crafts event at Duncan Park on June 30.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
              Councilmember Ryba mentioned the “Love Where You Live” event at RJ Rockers that  
              drew 500 or so people, and how exciting it was to see all that is going on in our City.  
              She also shared that it was the last week for the Artists in Residence at Hub-Bub and that 3                   
              of the artists were staying in Spartanburg. She also shared that it was her last week as  
              Executive Director of Hub-Bub as she was opening her own business in Downtown.   
              Mayor pro tem Scalisi shared she was excited about the “Way to Wellville” competition,  
              and commented that the strength in the City’s private/public partnerships enabled application  
              for awards/designations of that kind. She reminded everyone of the Red, White and Boom  
              celebration on July 4 from 6:00 to 10:00 at Barnet Park.   
              She mentioned that she met Dave Garson when he first came to town and had tasted items on  
              the menu that were very good. She thanked him for choosing the city to open his restaurant.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
              Councilmember Reeder also thanked Mr. Garson for choosing to locate his business in     
              downtown Spartanburg. He shared that the Juneteenth event the previous weekend was  



6 
 

              great. He echoed Councilmember Rice’s comments on the Focus on Fathers event. 
              Mr. Memmott introduced the Chamber of Commerce’s new President & CEO Allen Smith. 
 
  X.        Adjournment – 
              Councilmember Ryba made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mayor pro tem Scalisi  
              seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. The meeting adjourned             
              at 6:15 p.m. 
 
 _______________________ 
              Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 



  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

VII. A 

























  
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VIII. A  



 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager     
 
FROM: Kim Moultrie, Parks and Recreation Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Park Improvements – Saint Matthew’s Lane   
 
DATE: July 11, 2014 

 
 
BACKGROUND:   Over the past few weeks, staff has reached a tentative agreement with Saint 
Matthew’s Episcopal Church for the development of a City park on property owned by the church.   
Please see Exhibit 1 for the general location of the proposed park.  Exhibit 2 provides a more precise 
location of the proposed playground on the Saint Matthew’s property.  Staff believes this location 
would be very accessible and convenient to citizens residing in the nearby Wadsworth Hills 
subdivision and Westgate Pines Apartments.        
 
Under the agreement being proposed to Council, the City would enter into a 10 year ground lease of 
the park area.   The full ground lease is provided as Exhibit 3.   After 10 years the lease would renew 
annually unless terminated by either party.  The park would be open to the public and function as all 
other City parks.  Staff believes the ground lease to be in its final form, but it will require formal 
approval by the church vestry.  We understand consideration by the vestry will occur on Monday, 
July 14.  Assuming that the ground lease is approved by both parties, the City would purchase and 
pay for the installation of playground equipment.  Total costs for improvements are estimated at 
$51,080 as detailed in Exhibit 4.  The City would have responsibility for maintenance of the grounds 
(of the lease area) and playground equipment as set forth in the ground lease.  
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  To move forward with this proposed project, staff is requesting 
approval of the attached Resolution.  The Resolution will authorize the City Manager to enter into a 
ground lease with Saint Matthew’s.  Additionally, the Resolution will authorize the expenditure of 
$51,080.27 funds from the $400,000 budgeted for Westside park improvements and authorize 
purchase of the playground equipment from Cunningham Recreation in accordance with its bid 
submitted to US Communities Purchasing Alliance.     
 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  $51,080 estimated costs paid from Westside park 
improvements funds.    



A RESOLUTION 
 

TO APPROVE THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A 
GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT WITH SAINT 
MATTHEW’S EPISCOPAL CHURCH FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF A NEIGHBORHOOD PARK IN THE 
WEST SIDE OF SPARTANBURG. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City as part of its City-wide park initiative, by and through its Council, 
has authorized park and recreation improvements in the west side portion of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, Saint Matthew’s Episcopal Church (“Saint Matthew’s”) is interested in 
partnering with the City by leasing a portion of its property at 101 Saint Matthew’s Lane to the 
City for the City to provide a neighborhood park (the “Park”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City plans to install park improvements including, but not limited to, the 

equipment, landscaping, signage and other amenities; and 
 

WHEREAS, Saint Matthew’s has reviewed and approved the park improvements.  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the Mayor and Members of Council of the 
City of Spartanburg, in Council assembled: 
 

Section 1.  To authorize the City Manager to enter into a Ground Lease Agreement with 
Saint Matthew’s to lease a portion of 101 Saint Matthew’s Lane needed for the location of a 
neighborhood park in substantially the same form as the proposed Ground Lease Agreement 
attached hereto. 

 
Section 2.  To authorize the expenditure of $51,080.27 of the budgeted $400,000 

Westside park improvements funds. 
 
Section 3.  To authorize the purchase of playground equipment from Cunningham 

Recreation. 
 
Section 4.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its enactment. 
 
DONE AND RATIFIED this _________ day of ____________________, 2014. 

 
 

  ___________________________   
   Junie L. White, Mayor. 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk. 



b

DO
VE

R R
D

W 
O 

EZ
EL

L B
LV

D

SAINT MATTHEWS LN

CAMELOT DR

YORKSHIRE DR

POWELL MILL RD

PINEBROOK RD

FIELDCREST LN

WI
NC

HE
ST

ER
 PL

PIN
ED

AL
E C

T

NO
RM

AN
DY

 TE
R

DORMAN CENTRE DR

DO
VE

R R
D

W 
O 

EZ
EL

L B
LV

D

.

Sa
int

 M
att

he
ws

Ep
isc

op
al 

Ch
ur

ch
 

Le
ge

nd
Pa

rk
 Lo

ca
tio

n S
ite

s
Na

me b
Wa

ds
wo

rth
 P

ark

Pr
op

ert
y L

ine
s

Pa
rk

 Lo
ca

tio
n

Exhibit 1



Exhibit 2



 
 

1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  )            
  )    SAINT MATTHEW’S PARK  
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG  )           GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT  
                  
 

THIS AGREEMENT MADE as of the _____ day of ____________, 2014, by and 
between City of Spartanburg (“City”) whose address is Post Office Drawer 1749, Spartanburg, 
SC 29306 and Saint Matthew’s Episcopal Church (“Saint Matthew’s”) whose address is 101 
Saint Matthew’s Lane, Spartanburg, SC  29301.   
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the City as part of its City-wide park initiative, by and through its Council, has 
authorized park and recreation improvements in the west side portion of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, Saint Matthew’s is interested in partnering with the City by leasing a portion of its 
property to the City for the City to provide a neighborhood park (the “Park”) as generally 
described on Exhibit A; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Vestry as the governing body of Saint Matthew’s, approved such lease 
agreement on or about July 14, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, Saint Matthew’s has reviewed and approved the park improvements including, but 
not limited to, the equipment, landscaping, signage and other amenities. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENT, that in consideration of the sum of 
Ten Dollars ($10.00), and other mutual promises, the City and Saint Matthew’s agree as follows: 
 
1.  Term 
 

This Lease shall become effective as of the signing of this Agreement and will continue for a 
period of ten (10) years and shall automatically renew annually thereafter, unless sooner 
terminated as hereinafter provided. 
 

2.  Obligations of City: 
  

A. Park Improvements: 
 
The City will provide, and has installed, the following: 

 
1. Cunningham Recreation Gametime/Highland Pass Play Structure (Model # ES 

19596).  
2. 4-Bay Swing.   

 

Exhibit 3 



 
 

2 

3. Seven (7) recycled plastic park benches. 
 

4. One (1) 5-bike in-ground mount bike rack. 
 

5. Four (4) recycled plastic picnic tables. 
 

6. Four (4) perforated steel trash receptacles. 
 

7. Signage with City standard park rules and information and additional signage 
informing the public that the park is for public use. 

 
8. Landscape to include: 

 
a. Site work per Exhibit A with the mutual understanding that the City will 

adjust appropriately to enhance public visibility and aesthetics. 
 

b. Clearing vegetation along property line including, but not limited to, 
removal of any low-hanging tree limbs. 

 
c. Purchase and placement of shrubs and mulching along the north property 

line to preclude unwelcomed foot traffic. 
 

 
 

B.  Surface Material 
The City will install engineered wood fiber fall surface around and under all equipment 
per product specifications.  All remaining areas will be grass. 

 
C.  Trash Pickup 

The City will empty the trash receptacles twice a week and roll carts will be picked up 
weekly with schedule adjustments made during higher usage months. 

 
D. Maintenance  

The City will maintain all equipment.  The City will perform Park site inspections weekly 
and will inspect all equipment monthly. 

 
E. Access 
 As a passive park, the Park will remain open from dawn until dusk seven days a week.  

The City may provide limited programs at its sole discretion.   
 
F.  Parking Lot 

The City will provide a one-time striping of the parking lot and will designate 
handicapped parking spaces. 

 
 
 



 
 

3 

G.  Marketing   
 The City will provide marketing of the Park including, but not limited to, press releases, a 

grand opening, a half-page ad in the Spartanburg Herald newspaper and information on 
the City’s website. 

 
H.  Insurance   

The City will provide: 
 Commercial General Liability for bodily injury and property damage, with limits of 

$1 million per occurrence $2 million aggregate. 
 Workers’ compensation coverage, as required by state law. 

 
 
4.  Obligations of Saint Matthew’s: 
 

A. Removal of Fence. 
Saint Matthew’s will remove the fence that is currently on the property and may dispose 
of it as Saint Matthew’s wishes. 

 
B. Notification 

Saint Matthew’s will notify the City as soon as possible of any Park issues such as, but 
not limited to, disrepair or vandalism of Park improvements. 
 

C. Insurance 
Saint Matthew’s will provide General Liability Insurance for bodily injury and property 
damage, with limits of $1 million per occurrence $2 million aggregate. 

 
 
5. As to Both Parties: 
 

A. Termination 
After the initial 10-year lease, this Agreement may be terminated by either party at any 
time prior to its expiration for any reason upon sixty (60) days written notice to the other 
party.  If Saint Matthew’s terminates the Agreement, the City, at its sole discretion, may 
remove the Equipment and Saint Matthew’s must restore the property.  If the City 
terminates the Agreement, the City, at its sole discretion, may remove the Equipment and 
City will restore the property with permanent grassing.   

 
B. Entire Agreement 

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties. 
 
C. Amendments 

This Agreement may not be modified, nor may compliance with any of its terms be 
waived, except by written instrument executed and approved in the same manner as this 
Agreement. 
 
 



 
 

4 

D. Notice  
Notice is considered having been made by first-class mail to the following addresses. 

Saint Matthew’s: Saint Matthew’s Episcopal Church 
  Attn.:  Robert L. Brown, Rector 
  101 Saint Matthew’s Lane 
  Spartanburg, SC  29301 

   
City:  City of Spartanburg  
   Attn.: Ed Memmott, City Manager 

 Post Office Drawer 1749 
  Spartanburg, SC  29304 
 

 
                               

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed as of the date first above written by the 
undersigned duly authorized representatives of the parties. 
 
 

                                                            SAINT MATTHEW’S EPISCOPAL CHURCH 
 
___________________________ 
(Witness)                                                         By: _______________________________ 
                                                                                 Robert L. Brown, Rector 
___________________________    
(Witness)     By:  _______________________________  
       Clerk 
 
      By:  _______________________________ 
       Senior Warden 
 
 
 
                                                                        CITY OF SPARTANBURG 
 
__________________________  
(Witness)                                                         By: _______________________________ 
                                                                                 Ed Memmott, City Manager 
__________________________ 
(Witness) 



Exhibit 4 

      
Westside Park 

St. Matthews Park Location 

Park Improvements 

  
    

  

  Item Description Unit Qty. Unit Price Total 

1 Hardscape 
   

  

a. Playground Equipment L.S. 1        $  36,050.27  $36,050.27 

b. Site Work L.S. 1              2,500.00   2,500.00 

c. Landscape L.S. 1              2,000.00   2,000.00 

d. Park Benches & Installation Ea. 7                 480.00   3,360.00 

e. Bicycle Rack Ea. 1                 370.00   370.00 

f. Picnic Tables Ea. 4 850.00   3,400.00 

g. Trash Receptacles Ea. 4 470.00  1,880.00 

h. Rules signage       1,520.00 

  
 

        

  
    

  
  

    
  

  
    

  

  Total Cost 
   

$51,080.27 

  
    

  

  
    

  
 

  

            
 

 



  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IX. A  



 
 
 

                  REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager  
 
FROM: Tim Carter, Engineering Administrator 
 
SUBJECT: Traffic Signal Installation at Intersection of Dupre Drive and Fernwood Drive 
 
DATE: July 3, 2014 

 
BACKGROUND    
 
The intersection of Dupre and Fernwood Drives is currently served by a flashing warning signal.  
Over the past several months, city staff has worked with representatives from South Carolina 
Department of Transportation (“SCDOT”) and Spartanburg County School District 7 to evaluate 
options to upgrade the signalization of this intersection.  Please see Exhibit 1 for the location of this 
proposed signal.   
 
Based on an engineering assessment, it was determined that traffic volumes at this intersection 
warrant the installation of traffic signals to fully control this intersection.  The upgrades 
recommended at this intersection include traffic signals, pedestrian controls and signals, installation 
of sidewalk from Beechwood to Dupre, and crosswalk pavement markings.  SCDOT accepted the 
assessment and approved the improvements.  After receiving SCDOT approval, staff sought funding 
from the Spartanburg County Transportation Committee.  On May 1, the CTC technical committee 
recommended approval to the CTC Policy Committee.  Staff anticipates full CTC approval on July 
17.   
 
Subject to this final CTC approval, staff is requesting Council authorization for the City Manager to 
enter into a contract with MCH & Sons Contracting, LLC for the signal installation at a cost of 
$107,000.  MCH is the on-call signal contractor for SCDOT.  Under its procurement code, the City 
has the option to “piggy back” on the contract pricing of SCDOT.  See Exhibit 2 for detailed costs for 
signal installation.   
 
 In addition to the installation of the signal, sidewalk, curb and gutter, and other miscellaneous work 
associated with the project will be performed by other contractors.  This other work will total 
approximately $76,000 and will be awarded to multiple contractors based on quotes of various 
elements of the project.   None of these other contracts will exceed $25,000 and do not require 
Council approval.  A full listing of this work is attached as Exhibit 3.    
     
 
 
 



ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
Subject to approval of the full CTC, authorize staff to enter into contract with MCH and Sons 
Contracting, LLC for the installation traffic signals at the intersection of Dupre and Fernwood Drives 
in the amount of $107,126.41.  
 
 

BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  
 
$ 107,126.41  Signal Installation  
$   76,062.03  Other Work 
$ 183,188.44 Total Expenditures 
 
Funded by CTC and County Road Fee.   

 



FERNWOOD DR

DU
PR

E D
R

GR
EE

NG
AT

E L
N

BEECHWOOD DR

PINEVILLE RD

ALLSTON DR

S 494

S 
39

0

.

Location of 
Traffic Signal

Exhibit 1



Exhibit 2

CMcintyre
Text Box

CMcintyre
Text Box

CMcintyre
Text Box



Exhibit 2

CMcintyre
Text Box

CMcintyre
Text Box

CMcintyre
Text Box

CMcintyre
Text Box



Exhibit 3

CMcintyre
Text Box



  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

IX. B 



 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager  
 
FROM: Tim Carter, Engineering Administrator 
 
SUBJECT: 2014 Annual Street Resurfacing 
 
DATE: July 3, 2014 

 
BACKGROUND    
 
Staff received bids for the 2014 Street Resurfacing Project on June 24, 2014.   Please see 
attached listing of streets which were previously approved by Council for repaving.  This project 
consists of approximately 6,350 tons of surface Type C Asphalt, 5,355 square yards of full depth 
patching, and 23,000 square yards milling.     
 
The following bids were submitted:   
 
Ashmore Bros. Inc.  (Greer, SC)                                           $ 715,931.58 
Panagakos Asphalt Paving (Greenville, SC)                         $ 753,003.42 
 
 
The low bid from Ashmore Bros. Inc. is slightly lower than staff’s estimate and, barring 
unforeseen circumstances, should allow the completion of all of the streets approved for 
resurfacing by Council.  Staff has reviewed all bid information and has determined that Ashmore 
Bros. Inc. is the responsive low bidder.   No bids were submitted from MWBE certified 
contractors.  
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
Allow staff to accept the bid from Ashmore Bros. Inc. and authorize the City Manager to enter 
into a contract with Ashmore Bros. Inc. for the completion of the project.  
 

 

BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  
 
$ 350,000.00 County Transportation Committee Funds (CTC)  
$ 365,931.58 from the Spartanburg County Road Fee Funds    
 

 



St
re

et
 N

am
e

B
eg

in
ni

ng
E

nd
O

C
I

L
en

gt
h

W
id

th
Sq

. Y
d.

 
M

ill
in

g
Sq

. Y
d 

FD
P

E
st

. 
Q

ua
nt

ity
A

sp
ha

lt 
Pr

ic
e

M
ill

in
g 

Pr
ic

e
FD

P 
Pr

ic
e

A
sp

h.
 P

ri
ce

E
st

. T
ot

al

N
. C

ar
le

ila
 L

ak
e 

W
ay

R
oc

kb
ro

ok
 B

lv
d.

C
ul

-d
e-

sa
c

47
84

0
24

12
13

.3
3

18
0.

00
22

0.
50

80
.0

0
42

46
.6

7
54

00
.0

0
17

64
0.

00
27

,2
86

.6
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
S.

 C
ar

le
ila

 L
ak

e 
W

ay
R

oc
kb

ro
ok

 B
lv

d.
C

ul
-d

e-
sa

c
45

81
0

24
11

70
.0

0
20

0.
00

21
2.

63
80

.0
0

40
95

.0
0

60
00

.0
0

17
01

0.
00

27
,1

05
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

K
ne

e 
R

un
 

C
yp

re
ss

 V
ie

w
C

ul
-d

e-
sa

c
20

57
0

24
82

3.
33

15
0.

00
14

9.
63

80
.0

0
28

81
.6

7
45

00
.0

0
11

97
0.

00
19

,3
51

.6
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
C

on
le

y 
St

.
H

ig
h 

St
.

C
ul

-d
e-

sa
c

30
64

0
27

20
0.

00
18

9.
00

80
.0

0
0.

00
60

00
.0

0
15

12
0.

00
21

,1
20

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
C

ar
so

n 
St

.
C

re
ce

nt
 A

ve
.

A
ns

el
 S

t.
40

11
75

27
16

97
.2

2
10

0.
00

34
6.

99
80

.0
0

59
40

.2
8

30
00

.0
0

27
75

9.
38

36
,6

99
.6

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

A
ns

el
 S

t.
S.

 C
hu

rc
h 

St
.

En
d 

of
 S

tre
et

38
62

0
18

0.
00

0.
00

12
2.

06
80

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

97
65

.0
0

9,
76

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

O
ak

le
af

 D
r.

B
ria

rw
oo

d 
R

d.
B

ria
rc

lif
f R

d.
20

78
0

21
0.

00
20

0.
00

17
9.

16
80

.0
0

0.
00

60
00

.0
0

14
33

2.
50

20
,3

32
.5

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

A
m

he
rs

t D
r.

A
rd

m
or

e 
R

d.
A

m
he

rs
t D

r.
25

23
50

32
33

94
.4

4
0.

00
82

2.
50

80
.0

0
11

88
0.

56
0.

00
65

80
0.

00
77

,6
80

.5
6

$ 
   

   
   

  
O

ln
ey

 L
n.

C
yp

re
ss

 C
re

ek
 D

r,
C

ul
-d

e-
sa

c
20

60
0

24
86

6.
67

20
0.

00
15

7.
50

80
.0

0
30

33
.3

3
60

00
.0

0
12

60
0.

00
21

,6
33

.3
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
C

yp
re

ss
 V

ie
w

C
yp

re
ss

 C
re

ek
 D

r,
C

ul
-d

e-
sa

c
18

71
0

24
10

25
.5

6
0.

00
18

6.
38

80
.0

0
35

89
.4

4
0.

00
14

91
0.

00
18

,4
99

.4
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
S.

 L
ib

er
ty

 S
t.

Le
e 

St
.

E.
 M

ai
n 

St
.

40
13

75
26

19
86

.1
1

20
0.

00
39

1.
02

80
.0

0
69

51
.3

9
60

00
.0

0
31

28
1.

25
44

,2
32

.6
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
K

ea
rs

e 
C

t. 
Sl

oa
ns

 G
ro

ve
 R

d.
C

ul
-d

e-
sa

c
30

40
0

24
57

7.
78

15
0.

00
10

5.
00

80
.0

0
20

22
.2

2
45

00
.0

0
84

00
.0

0
14

,9
22

.2
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
B

oy
d 

St
.

C
on

ne
ct

ic
ut

 A
ve

.
M

ill
s A

v.
36

10
70

29
15

45
.5

6
15

0.
00

33
9.

39
80

.0
0

54
09

.4
4

45
00

.0
0

27
15

1.
25

37
,0

60
.6

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

C
am

br
id

ge
 C

ir.
S.

 C
on

ve
rs

e 
St

.
H

ar
va

rd
 D

r.
20

11
00

22
0.

00
10

0.
00

26
4.

69
80

.0
0

0.
00

30
00

.0
0

21
17

5.
00

24
,1

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

G
ab

le
 C

t.
Fe

rn
w

oo
d 

G
le

nd
al

e 
R

d.
C

ul
-d

e-
sa

c
35

13
00

26
18

77
.7

8
0.

00
36

9.
69

80
.0

0
65

72
.2

2
0.

00
29

57
5.

00
36

,1
47

.2
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
B

ut
te

rn
ut

 R
d.

H
ou

nd
se

ar
 T

rl.
C

ul
-d

e-
sa

c
40

11
00

24
50

0.
00

28
8.

75
80

.0
0

0.
00

15
00

0.
00

23
10

0.
00

38
,1

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

H
ou

nd
se

ar
 T

rl.
B

ut
te

rn
ut

 R
d.

C
ul

-d
e-

sa
c

42
48

0
24

60
0.

00
12

6.
00

80
.0

0
0.

00
18

00
0.

00
10

08
0.

00
28

,0
80

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
C

ar
ol

in
a 

A
ve

.
S.

 C
hu

rc
h 

St
.

Pe
ro

nn
ea

u 
St

.
24

65
0

33
93

8.
89

50
0.

00
23

4.
61

80
.0

0
32

86
.1

1
15

00
0.

00
18

76
8.

75
37

,0
54

.8
6

$ 
   

   
   

  
Pe

ro
nn

ea
u 

St
.

C
ar

ol
in

a 
A

ve
.

W
. C

ol
um

bi
a 

St
.

28
37

0
20

53
4.

44
37

5.
00

80
.9

4
80

.0
0

18
70

.5
6

11
25

0.
00

64
75

.0
0

19
,5

95
.5

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

W
. C

ol
um

bi
a 

A
ve

.
Pe

ro
nn

ea
u 

St
.

S.
 C

hu
rc

h 
St

.
25

65
0

30
93

8.
89

40
0.

00
21

3.
28

80
.0

0
32

86
.1

1
12

00
0.

00
17

06
2.

50
32

,3
48

.6
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
Pa

til
lo

 C
t. 

S.
 P

in
e 

St
.

En
d 

of
 S

tre
et

31
45

0
17

0.
00

83
.6

7
80

.0
0

0.
00

66
93

.7
5

6,
69

3.
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

H
ar

t S
t.

E.
 C

ol
um

bi
a 

A
ve

.
C

ul
-d

e-
sa

c
35

45
0

18
65

0.
00

0.
00

88
.5

9
80

.0
0

0.
00

70
87

.5
0

7,
08

7.
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

E.
 C

ol
um

bi
a 

A
ve

.
S.

 C
hu

rc
h 

St
.

Li
be

rty
 S

t.
38

80
0

30
11

55
.5

6
40

0.
00

26
2.

50
80

.0
0

12
00

0.
00

21
00

0.
00

33
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

Sa
in

t J
am

es
 D

r.
C

or
ne

liu
s R

d.
Sa

vo
y 

St
.

37
28

00
22

40
0.

00
67

3.
75

80
.0

0
12

00
0.

00
53

90
0.

00
65

,9
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
Pe

nn
el

l D
r.

H
ey

w
oo

d 
A

ve
.

H
am

m
er

m
ill

 H
ol

w
45

90
0

24
13

00
.0

0
35

0.
00

23
6.

25
80

.0
0

10
50

0.
00

18
90

0.
00

29
,4

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
69

5.
56

53
55

.0
0

63
44

.4
6

$7
33

,2
71

.8
8

$3
50

,0
00

.0
0

$3
83

,2
71

.8
8

C
ity

 o
f S

pa
rt

an
bu

rg

St
re

et
 R

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
 2

01
4-

 2
01

5 
R

oa
d 

L
is

t

 T
ot

al
 

20
14

 P
av

in
g 

L
is

t

A
m

ou
nt

 R
eq

ue
st

ed
 fr

om
 C

TC
A

m
on

t t
o 

be
 fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

R
oa

d 
Fe

e



  
 

 

IX. C  




























































